# FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED

BYLAWS

OF

# GOLDEN WEST-NAOMI HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>Page</u>	
ARTICLE I NAME, LOCATION AND DEFINITIONS 1			
Section 1.01	Name and Location		
Section 1.02	Association is Nonprofit	1	
Section 1.03	Definitions	1	
Section 1.04	Restated Bylaws	1	
ARTICLE II MEETING	GS OF MEMBERS AND VOTING	2	
Section 2.01			
Section 2.02	Voting Rights Eligibility to Vote	2	
Section 2.03	Furnishing Evidence of Membership	2	
Section 2.04	Voting at Membership Meetings		
Section 2.05	Cumulative Voting		
Section 2.06	Ballots Case are Irrevocable; Multiple Ballots Cast		
Section 2.07	Proxies for Quorum Only	4	
Section 2.08	Membership Meeting Quorum	4	
Section 2.09	Adjourned Meetings		
Section 2.10	Effect of a Member's Attendance at a Meeting		
Section 2.11 Section 2.12	Place of Meetings of Members		
Section 2.12 Section 2.13	Annual Meetings of Members Special Meetings of Members		
Section 2.13	Notice of Membership Meetings		
Section 2.15	Affidavit of Mailing Notice		
Section 2.16	Inspectors of Election		
Section 2.17	Minutes, Presumption of Notice		
Section 2.18	Record Dates		
Section 2.19	Consent of Absentees	7	
ARTICLE III BOARD OF DIRECTORS; SELECTION			
Section 3.01	Candidate Nomination		
Section 3.02	Number and Qualification		
Section 3.03	Election and Term of Office		
Section 3.04	Compensation		
Section 3.05	Vacancies	8	
Section 3.06	Removal of Directors	9	
Section 3.07	Filling Vacancies		
Section 3.08	Regular Meetings of Board		
Section 3.09	Special Meetings of Board		
Section 3.10	Waiver of Notice		
Section 3.11	Emergency Board Meetings May Be Conducted by Email		
Section 3.12	Quorum and Adjournment		
Section 3.13 Section 3.14	Executive Session		
-			
	S AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS	-	
Section 4.01	Powers and Duties		
Section 4.02	Powers of the Board		
Section 4.03	Limitations on Board Power.		
Section 4.04	Duties of the Board		
Section 4.05	Discipline and Reimbursement Assessments Process	10	

RS	.16	
Designation of Association Officers	.16	
Election of Officers	.17	
Removal of Officers	.17	
Filling of Vacancies	.17	
Compensation		
President	.17	
Secretary	.17	
Treasurer	.18	
ARTICLE VI SUBORDINATE OFFICERS & COMMITTEES		
ARTICLE VII AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS		
ARTICLE VIII CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; Successor Statutes		
ARTICLE IX FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS		
ARTICLE X MISCELLANEOUS		
Execution of Documents		
Fiscal Year		
Methods of Delivery of Documents	.22	
	Designation of Association Officers Election of Officers Removal of Officers Filling of Vacancies Compensation President Secretary Treasurer DINATE OFFICERS & COMMITTEES Appointment Duties Executive Committee MENTS TO BYLAWS ICTING PROVISIONS; Successor Statutes IAL REQUIREMENTS Reserve Study Expenditure of Reserve Funds Withdrawal of Reserve Funds Association Budgets and Operating Statements ANEOUS Checks, Drafts and Documents Execution of Documents Execution of Documents Derating Account Fiscal Year	

#### FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED

### **BYLAWS**

### OF

### **GOLDEN WEST-NAOMI HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION**

#### A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION

### ARTICLE I NAME, LOCATION AND DEFINITIONS

**Section 1.01 Name and Location**. The name of the corporation is GOLDEN WEST-NAOMI HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION (Association). The principal office of the Association shall be located in City of Arcadia, County of Los Angeles, State of California, or as otherwise designated from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 1.02 Association is Nonprofit. The Association has been formed pursuant to the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law as a nonprofit mutual benefit corporation, in connection with the condominium development located on Tract No. 37952, in the City of Arcadia, County of Los Angeles, State of California, and more fully described in Exhibit "A" of the Declaration.

**Section 1.03 Definitions**. Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, the capitalized terms in these Bylaws shall have the same meanings as are given to such terms in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions Restrictions and Easements for GOLDEN WEST-NAOMI HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, recorded in the Official Records of Los Angeles County (the "Declaration"), and as may be duly amended from time to time. All capitalized terms used herein but not defined herein shall have the same meaning as ascribed to such term in the Declaration.

Section 1.04 Restated Bylaws. By these FIRST AMENDED and Restated Bylaws, the Association seeks and intends to amend, and completely restate that certain document known as the First Amended Bylaws of GOLDEN WEST-NAOMI HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION ("First <u>Amended Bylaws</u>"), and any amendments to the Original Bylaws that existed prior to the date stated on the Certificate of Secretary page below.

#### ARTICLE II MEETINGS OF MEMBERS AND VOTING

**Section 2.01 Voting Rights**. The Association shall have one (1) class of voting membership. The Members shall be all Owners and shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each measure on a ballot for each Condominium owned. When more than one (1) person holds an interest in any Condominium, all such persons shall be Members. The vote for such Unit shall be exercised as they among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one (1) vote be cast with respect to any Condominium. If more than one (1) vote is cast with respect to a Condominium, the votes for said Condominium will be nullified.

**Section 2.02 Eligibility to Vote**. Only Members in good standing shall be entitled to vote on any issue or matter presented to the Members for approval. In order to be in good standing, a Member must be current in the payment of all Assessments and other charges levied against the Member's Condominium and not be subject to any disciplinary proceeding or otherwise in violation of the Governing Documents. A Member's good standing shall be determined as of the record date established in accordance with Article II, below.

**Section 2.03 Furnishing Evidence of Membership**. To establish a person's status as a Member, the Board may require such person to advise the Secretary in writing that such person is qualified to be a Member, or to provide the Secretary with evidence of such qualification in the form of a conformed copy of a grant deed showing that current title of the Condominium is in the name of the Member, or a conformed copy of a first deed of trust currently encumbering the Condominium and showing the mortgagor as the Member. Any transfer of title to a Condominium shall operate automatically to transfer the membership in the Association to the new Owner.

### Section 2.04 Voting at Membership Meetings.

(a) Voting at any membership meeting may be in person or by written Secret Ballot ("Secret Ballot") in accordance with California State law. If later statute authorizes electronic voting, voting may be by electronic secret ballot. If electronic voting is authorized by law after adoption of these Bylaws, the within procedures may be supplemented by Election Rules to allow for such method of voting, and "electronic ballot" may be included in the definition of "written ballot" where applicable in these Bylaws.

(b) An election within the Association regarding Assessments, selection of members of the Board, removal of members of the Board, amendments to the Governing Documents, or the granting of Exclusive Use Common Area shall be conducted by written Secret Ballot in accordance with California Civil Code section 5100-5145 or any amendment.

(c) Voting Procedures on Items Not Governed by Secret Ballot Voting. In instances where the Members are required to vote on a matter and that matter is not of the kind described in above, voting shall be completed at an annual meeting or special meeting, and subject to the following requirements:

- (1) Notice shall be delivered to Members and shall include all required information on the meeting, its purpose and the matter to be voted upon. Notice shall be delivered to Members by first-class mail, or such other method permitted by applicable Civil Code, at least ten (10) but not more than ninety (90) days prior to such meeting. Such notice shall set forth the proposed measure in which Members are requested to submit a vote. A ballot may be included with the notice. The ballot shall clearly state the proposed measure, the number of votes required to pass the measure, the manner in which voting shall be conducted, and allow Members an opportunity to approve or disapprove the proposed measure;
- (2) Voting may be conducted by: (a) voice vote at the meeting, or (b) ballot. If later enacted statute authorizes electronic voting, voting may also be by that method. If voting is by ballot, Members shall be permitted to deliver their ballot at the meeting or prior to the meeting via U.S. Mail (and, in the Board's discretion, some other reasonable method, such as via hand delivery or facsimile); and

## (d) Member Action Without a Meeting.

- (1) Any action which may be taken by the vote of Members at a regular or special meeting may be taken without a meeting if the Association distributes a written ballot to every Member entitled to vote on the matter (or, if later statute authorizes it, electronic ballot). Such ballot shall set forth the proposed action, provide an opportunity to specify approval or disapproval of any proposal, and provide a reasonable time within which to return the ballot to the Association.
- (2) Approval by written ballot shall be valid only when the number of votes cast by ballot within the time period specified equals or exceeds the quorum required to be present at a meeting authorizing the action, and the number of approvals equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required for approval at a meeting at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the number of votes cast by ballot.
- (3) All solicited ballots shall indicate the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirement and shall state the percentage of approvals necessary to pass the measure submitted.
- (4) Unless otherwise provided in the Articles or these Bylaws, a written ballot may not be revoked.

### Section 2.05 Cumulative Voting. Cumulative voting shall not be permitted.

Section 2.06 Ballots Case are Irrevocable; Multiple Ballots Cast. Once submitted, a ballot may not be revoked. If more than one ballot is cast on behalf of a member, and it cannot be determined which ballot was first cast, all ballots received shall be disregarded. Otherwise, the first ballot received shall be considered the ballot for that member, and all later ballots cast in that election for that membership will not be counted.

**Section 2.07 Proxies for Quorum Only**. Proxies are permitted, including proxies solely for the purpose of establishing quorum. A Member shall be entitled to designate another Member to act as the Member's proxy at a meeting, provided the proxy is in proper form and complies with all legal requirements.

**Section 2.08 Membership Meeting Quorum**. At all meetings of the Members, fifty-one percent (**51%**) of the Association's voting power, present by advance written ballot, in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum and a majority of the voting power present and entitled to vote, either in person or by proxy, shall be sufficient for the passage of any motion or the adoption of any resolution except in connection with the amendment of this Declaration, or the dissolution of the Association, as hereinafter set forth.

Section 2.09 Adjourned Meetings. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of those present in person or by proxy may adjourn the meeting to another time but may not transact any other business. An adjournment for lack of a quorum by those in attendance shall be to a date not less than five (5) days and not more than thirty (30) days from the original meeting date. The quorum for such an adjourned meeting shall be twenty-five percent (25%) of the total voting power of the Association. If a time and place for the adjourned meeting shall be given to Members in the manner prescribed for regular meetings.

**Section 2.10 Effect of a Member's Attendance at a Meeting**. Attendance by a Member or such Member's proxy holder at a meeting shall also constitute a waiver of any objections such person may have with respect to notice of that meeting, except when the Member or proxy holder attends the meeting for the sole purpose of objecting at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of any business because of the inadequacy or illegality of the notice. Attendance at a meeting is not a waiver of any right to object to the consideration of matters not included in the notice of the meeting that are required to be so noticed.

Section 2.11 Place of Meetings of Members. Meetings of the Members shall be held on the Property or such other suitable place within the County of Los Angeles as determined by the Board of Directors.

**Section 2.12 Annual Meetings of Members**. The annual meeting of Members shall be held, at a time and date set by the Board of Directors. At each annual meeting there shall be elected Directors of the Association by ballot of the Members, in accordance with the requirements of these Bylaws. The Members may also transact such other business of the Association as may properly come before them.

## Section 2.13 Special Meetings of Members.

It shall be the duty of the Board to call a special meeting of the Members, if directed by resolution of a majority of a quorum of the Board of Directors or by request of the President of the Association or as follows:

(a) Upon receipt by the Secretary of a petition signed by Members in good standing and representing at least five percent (5%) of the total voting power of the Association, the Board may notice a special meeting. The notice shall state that a special meeting of Members, pursuant to the request, will be held at a time fixed by the Board which shall be not less than ten (10) nor more than ninety (90) days after receipt by the officer of the written request.

(b) Should the notice not be given within twenty (20) days after receipt by the officer of the request, the person or persons entitled to call the meeting who made the request may give notice of the meeting themselves or may petition the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles to summarily, after notice to the Association giving it an opportunity to be heard, order the giving of notice of the meeting. Where a petition is filed with the court, the court may issue such orders as may be appropriate including, without limitation, orders designating the time and place of the meeting, the record date for determining Members entitled to vote at the meeting and the form of the notice.

(c) No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.

## Section 2.14 Notice of Membership Meetings.

(a) It shall be the duty of the Secretary to send a notice of each annual or special meeting by first class mail, at least ten (10) but not more than ninety (90) days prior to such meeting, stating the purpose thereof as well as the day, hour and place where it is to be held, to each Member of record, addressed to the Member's address last appearing on the books of the Association or supplied by such Member to the Association for the purpose of notice. The notice may set forth time limits for speakers and nominating procedures for the meeting. The notice shall specify those matters intended to be presented for action by the Members, but, except as otherwise provided by law, any proper matter may be presented at an annual meeting for action. The notice of any meeting at which Directors are to be elected shall include the names of all those who are nominees at the time the notice is given to the Members.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws, approval by the Members of any of the following proposals, other than by unanimous approval of those Members entitled to vote, shall not be valid unless the general nature of the proposal was stated in the notice or in any written waiver of the notice: (a) removing a Director without cause; (b) filling vacancies on the Board under those circumstances where a vote of the Members is required; (c) approving a contract or transaction between the Association and one or more Directors, or between the Association and any entity in which a Director has a material financial interest; (d) amendment of the Association's Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or the Declaration; (e) electing to wind up and dissolve the Association; or (f) changing the Association's assessments in a manner requiring Member approval under the Declaration; or (g) voting upon any election to voluntarily terminate and dissolve the Association.

**Section 2.15** Affidavit of Mailing Notice. An affidavit of the mailing of any notice of any Members' meeting may be executed by the Secretary, or any other party of the Association giving the notice, and if so executed shall be filed and maintained in the minute book of the Association.

## Section 2.16 Inspectors of Election.

(a) In advance of any meeting of Members, the Board may appoint any persons as Inspectors of Election to act at such meeting and any adjournment. If Inspectors of Election are not so appointed, or if any persons so appointed fail to appear or refuse to act, the chairperson of any meeting of Members may, and on the request of any Member, shall appoint Inspectors of Election at the meeting. The number of Inspectors shall be either one (1) or three (3). If there are three (3) Inspectors of Election, the decision, act or certificate of a majority is effective in all respects as the decision, act or certificate of all.

(b) The duties of such Inspectors shall be as prescribed by the California Civil Code and Corporations Code, as may be amended from time to time, and shall include: (i) determining the number of memberships outstanding and the voting power of each; (ii) determining the number represented at the meeting; (iii) determining the existence of a quorum; (iv) determining the authenticity, validity and effect of proxies; (v) receiving votes, ballots or consents; (vi) hearing and determining all challenges and questions in any way arising in connection with the right to vote; (vii) counting and tabulating all votes or consents; (viii) determining when the polls are closed; (ix) determining the result; (x) retention of, as association election materials, both a candidate registration list and a voter list, and (xi) doing such acts as may be proper to conduct the election or vote with fairness to all Members.

(c) For the purposes of this Section, an independent third party includes, but is not limited to, a volunteer poll worker with the County registrar of voters, a licensee of the California Board of Accountancy, or a notary public. An independent third party may be a Member of the Association, but may not be a member of the Board of Directors, a candidate for the Board of Directors or related to a member of the Board of Directors. An independent third party may not be a person who is currently employed or under contract to the Association for any compensable services other than serving as an inspector of elections.

(d) An Inspector of Election shall perform his or her duties impartially, in good faith, to the best of his or her ability, and as expeditiously as is practical. Any report made by the Inspector or Inspectors of Election is prima facie evidence of the facts stated in the report.

**Section 2.17 Minutes, Presumption of Notice**. Minutes or a similar record of the proceedings of meetings of Members, when signed by the President or Secretary, shall be presumed to truthfully evidence the matters set forth therein ("Minutes" or "Minutes of the Meeting"). A recitation in the Minutes executed by the Secretary that notice of the meeting was properly given shall be prima facie evidence that such notice was given.

**Section 2.18 Record Dates**. The Board of Directors may fix a date in the future as a record date for the determination of the Members entitled to notice of any meeting of Members. The record date so fixed shall be neither less than ten (10) days nor more than ninety (90) days prior to the date of the meeting. If the Board does not fix a record date for notice to Members, the record date for notice shall be the close of business on the business day preceding the day on which notice is given. In addition, the Board of Directors may fix a date in the future as a record date for the determination of the Members entitled to vote at any meeting of Members. The record date so fixed shall be neither less than ten (10) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the meeting. If the Board does not fix a record date for determining Members entitled to vote, Members on the day of the meeting who are otherwise eligible to vote are entitled to vote at the meeting.

**Section 2.19 Consent of Absentees**. The transactions of any meeting of Members, either annual or special, however called and noticed, shall be as valid as transactions transpiring at a meeting duly held after proper notice, if a quorum be present either in person or by proxy, and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the Members not present in person or by proxy, signs a written waiver of notice, a consent to the holding of such meeting, or an approval of the Minutes. All such waivers, consents or approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the Minutes of the Meeting.

### ARTICLE III

## BOARD OF DIRECTORS; SELECTION TERM OF OFFICE; MEETINGS

Section 3.01 Candidate Nomination. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by written submission to the Secretary or other designated person. Members may nominate themselves or other candidates provided any other nominated candidate consents to the nomination. Such nominations shall be made at a time so as to permit the Secretary or other persons giving notice of such meeting to Members to include a list of such nominations in the notice.

**Section 3.02 Number and Qualification**. The Board of Directors will consist of three (3) Directors, each of whom must be a Member of the Association. No person, either in such person's capacity as a natural person or as a designated representative of an entity or artificial person, may be a candidate for the Board of Directors, or once elected, continue to serve as a member of the Board if that person:

(a) is not a member of the Association at the time of the nomination;

(b) discloses, or if the Association is aware or becomes aware of, a past criminal conviction that would either prevent the association from purchasing the fidelity bond coverage required by law or cause the termination of the association's existing fidelity bond coverage as to that person should the person be elected;

(c) is delinquent by more than sixty (60) days in payment of any Assessment, and has not entered into an approved payment plan;

(d) has been a member of the association for less than one year;

(e) would be serving on the board at the same time as another person who holds a joint ownership interest in the same separate interest parcel as the person and the other person is either properly nominated for the current election or an incumbent director.

## Section 3.03 Election and Term of Office.

(a) The Board of Directors will be elected by vote of the general membership of the Association at the Annual meeting of members called for that purpose and when elected shall serve for two (2) year staggered terms, except as provided below.

(b) <u>Terms</u>. Each Director shall hold office until his term has expired and a successor has been elected or until such Director's death, resignation, removal or judicial adjudication of mental incompetence.

(c) <u>Tie Vote</u>. In the event of any tie for the last position, the tie shall be decided by a single coin flip. Among those tied, the candidate with the last name earlier in the alphabet shall be "heads" and the candidate with the last name later in the alphabet shall be "tails". A tie involving more than two persons shall be resolved by a blind drawing of the candidates' names, in which the first name drawn shall be elected.

**Section 3.04 Compensation**. Directors shall not receive any salary or compensation for their services as Directors; provided, however, that any Director may be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in the performance of such Director's duties and authorized by the Board, upon submission of valid receipts approved by the Board.

**Section 3.05 Vacancies**. A vacancy or vacancies shall be deemed to exist in case of death, resignation, removal, or judicial adjudication of mental incompetence of any Director.

(a) <u>Excessive Absences</u>. A vacancy may be deemed to exist in the case of the absence of a Director from three (3) consecutive regular meetings or a total of four (4) regular meetings in any calendar year without just cause.

(b) <u>Disqualification</u>. A vacancy shall be deemed to exist in the case of a Director who is disqualified from service under these Bylaws. Such vacancy may upon motion be declared in an open Board meeting, stating the ground of disqualification.

(c) <u>Other Vacancies</u>. A vacancy shall be deemed to exist if the Members shall increase the authorized number of Directors, but shall fail at the meeting at which such increase is authorized, to elect the additional Director, or if the Members fail at any time to elect the full number of authorized Directors.

(d) <u>Vacancies not Filled by Board</u>. The Members may at any time call a meeting to elect Directors to fill any vacancy not filled by the Directors, and may elect the additional Directors at the meeting at which an amendment by these Bylaws is voted increasing the number of Directors.

(e) <u>Resignation</u>. Any Director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the President, the Secretary or the Board. In the event a Director gives any of the above-named parties verbal notice, the Board shall send the Director who gave verbal notice of resignation a letter, by certified and regular mail, stating that the Board is accepting the Director's verbal resignation fifteen (15) days after the date of the letter.

**Section 3.06 Removal of Directors**. Any Director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a majority of the total voting power for the Association represented at a duly held meeting in accordance with the provisions of the California Corporations Code. For purposes of this section only, quorum shall be fifty-one percent (51%) of the entire membership of the Association. With respect to a special meeting to recall the members of the Board, if a quorum is not achieved, the measure shall be defeated and the Members shall not have the power to reconvene the meeting or allow additional time for additional ballots or members present to be counted.

**Section 3.07 Filling Vacancies**. Vacancies in the Board of Directors caused by any reason other than the removal of a Director by a vote of the Members of the Association shall be filled by vote of the majority of the remaining Directors, even though the remaining Directors may constitute less than a quorum. Any vacancy caused by the removal of a Director by the Members shall be filled by the vote of the Members. Any vacancy not filled by the Directors may be filled by vote of the Members at the next annual meeting of the Members or at a special meeting of the Members called for such purpose. The term of office of each Director elected or appointed to fill a vacancy created by the resignation, death or removal of the Director's predecessor shall be the balance of the unserved term of such Director's predecessor.

## Section 3.08 Regular Meetings of Board.

(a) <u>Open Meetings</u>. Board meetings shall be open to all Members, except when the Board adjourns the meeting to executive session. The Board shall permit any Member to speak during a time designated as "open forum" at any Board meeting, except for meetings of the Board held in executive session. A reasonable time limit for Members to speak to the Board shall be established by the Board.

(b) <u>Location of Meetings</u>. Regular meetings may be held at such time and place within the Property as shall be determined, from time to time, by a resolution adopted by a majority of a quorum of the Directors, or remotely or virtually, as permitted by California law.

(c) <u>Frequency</u>. Regular Board meetings shall be held no less frequently than quarterly.

(d) <u>Notice to the Members</u>. Members shall be given notice of the time and place of an Open Board meeting, other than an emergency meeting, at least four (4) days prior to the Board meeting. Notice shall be given by posting the notice in a prominent place or places within the Common Area and by mail to any Owner who had requested notification of Board meetings by mail, at the address requested by the Owner. Notice may also be given, by mail or delivery of the notice to each Unit in the Property or by electronic mail (if the Member has so authorized), newsletter, or similar means of communication. The notice shall contain the agenda for the meeting.

(e) <u>Notice to the Board</u>. Regular Board meetings shall be held upon four (4) days' notice by first-class mail or forty-eight (48) hours' notice delivered personally or by telephone, including a voice messaging system or other system or technology designed to record and communicate messages, telegraph, facsimile transmission, electronic mail, or other electronic means in accordance with California Corporations Code Section 20.

## Section 3.09 Special Meetings of Board.

(a) <u>Open Meetings</u>. Special Board meetings are meetings which are not on the Association's regularly scheduled interval. Special Board meetings shall be open to all Members, except when the Board adjourns the meeting to executive session. The Board shall permit any Member to speak at any Special Board meeting in a time designated as "open forum", except for Special Board meetings held in executive session. A reasonable time limit for all Members to speak to the Board shall be established by the Board.

(b) <u>Calling Special Board Meetings.</u> Special Board meetings for any purpose may be called at any time by the President, any Vice President, Secretary or by any two (2) Directors ("Special Board meetings").

(c) <u>Notice to the Membership</u>. Members shall be given notice of the time and place of a Special Board meeting, except for an "emergency meeting," at least four (4) days prior to the Special Board meeting. Notice shall be given by posting the notice in a prominent place or places within the Common Area and by mail to any Owner who had requested notification of Board meetings by mail, at the address requested by the Owner. Notice may also be given by mail or delivery of the notice to each unit in the Property or by electronic mail (if the Member has so authorized), newsletter, or similar means of communication. The notice shall contain the agenda for the meeting.

(d) <u>Notice to the Board</u>. Except for an emergency meeting, Special Board meetings shall be held upon four (4) days' notice by first-class mail or forty-eight (48) hours' notice delivered personally or by telephone, including a voice messaging system or other system or technology designed to record and communicate messages, telegraph, facsimile transmission, electronic mail, or other electronic means in accordance with California Corporations Code Section 20. However, if the Board is meeting solely in closed executive session, two (2) days notification must be given, except if the meeting is an emergency meeting.

(e) <u>Emergency Board Meetings</u>. An emergency Board meeting may be called by the President, or by any two members of the Board other than the President, if there are circumstances that could not have been reasonably foreseen which require immediate attention and possible action by the Board, and which of necessity make it impracticable to provide notice as required by law.

**Section 3.10 Waiver of Notice.** Before, at or after any meeting of the Board of Directors, any Director may, in writing, waive personal notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice to such Director. Attendance by a Director at any meeting of the Board shall be a waiver by that Director of personal notice of the time and place. If all the Directors are present at any meeting of the Board and notice is given to the Members as may be required under these Bylaws, no notice to Directors shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting. The transactions of any meeting of the Board, however called and noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if (1) a quorum be present, (2) either before or after the meeting, each of the Directors not present signs a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding such meeting, or an approval of the Minutes, and (3) notice is given to the Members as may be required under these bylaws. All such waivers, consents and approvals shall be filed with the records of the Association or made a part of the Minutes of the meeting.

Section 3.11 Emergency Board Meetings May Be Conducted by Email. The Board shall not conduct a regular or special Board Meeting by email; however, the Board may conduct

an emergency Board Meeting by email if all directors consent in writing to conduct an emergency Board Meeting by email and, if the written consent or consents to so meet are filed with the minutes of the Board meeting reflecting the action(s) taken by email. The written consents may also be transmitted by email. If the Board has consented in advance, the Board may decide emergency matters by electronic mail. Copies of the electronic mails will be attached to the next Board meeting minutes.

**Section 3.12 Quorum and Adjournment**. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, at all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority of the authorized number of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the acts of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board of Directors. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors, there is less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting to another time and place. If the meeting is adjourned for more than twenty-four (24) hours, notice of an adjournment to another time and place shall be given prior to the time of the adjourned meeting to the Directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment.

## Section 3.13 Executive Session.

(a) Any Member may attend Board meetings, except when the Board adjourns to "executive session" to consider:

- (1) Litigation;
- (2) Matters relating to the formation of contracts with third parties;
- (3) Member discipline or Reimbursement Assessments;
- (4) Personnel matters;
- (5) Assessment lien foreclosure votes;
- (6) Discussion of a payment plan proposed by a delinquent Member, or to meet with a Member, upon the Member's request, regarding the Member's payment of assessments, as specified in the California Civil Code; and
- (7) Any other orders of business appropriate for executive session as set forth in the Civil Code or any successor statute, as amended from time to time.

(b) Members shall be given at least two (2) days' notice when the Board is meeting solely in an executive session.

(c) Any matter discussed in executive session shall be generally noted in the minutes of the meeting immediately following the executive session that is open to the Members. In any matter relating to the discipline of a Member or Reimbursement Assessment, the Board shall meet in executive session if requested by the Member and the Member shall be entitled to attend only that portion of the executive session devoted to the Member's discipline.

**Section 3.14 Agenda Required**. Except as described below, the Board may not discuss or take action on any item at a nonemergency meeting unless the item was placed on the agenda included in the notice that was posted and distributed pursuant to the California Civil Code. This restriction does not prohibit a Member who is not a member of the Board from speaking on issues not on the agenda. Before discussing any item pursuant to this Section, the Board shall openly identify the item to the Members in attendance at the meeting.

(a) Notwithstanding anything stated herein, a member of the Board, a managing agent or other agent of the Board, or a member of the staff of the Board, may do any of the following: briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by a person speaking at a meeting; ask a question for clarification; make a brief announcement; or make a brief report on his or her own activities, whether in response to questions posed by a member of the Association or based upon his or her own initiative.

(b) Notwithstanding anything stated herein, the Board or a member of the Board, subject to rules or procedures of the Board, may do any of the following: (1) provide a reference to, or provide other resources for factual information to, its managing agent or other agents or staff; (2) request its managing agent or other agents or staff to report back to the Board at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or take action to direct its managing agent or other agents or staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda; or, (3) direct its managing agent or other agents or other agents or staff to perform administrative tasks that are necessary to carry out this Section.

(c) Notwithstanding anything stated herein, the Board may take action on any item of business not appearing on the agenda posted and distributed pursuant to the California Civil Code under any of the following conditions:

- (1) Upon a determination made by a majority of the Board members present at the meeting that an emergency situation exists. An emergency situation exists if there are circumstances that could not have been reasonably foreseen by the board, that require immediate attention and possible action by the Board, and that, of necessity, make it impracticable to provide notice.
- (2) Upon a determination made by the Board by a vote of two-thirds of the Members present at the meeting, or, if less than two-thirds of total membership of the Board is present at the meeting, by a unanimous vote of the members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the Board after the agenda was posted and distributed pursuant to the California Civil Code.
- (3) The item appeared on an agenda that was posted and distributed pursuant to the California Civil Code for a prior meeting of the Board that occurred not more than thirty (30) calendar days before the date that action is taken on the item and, at the prior meeting, action on the item was continued to the meeting at which the action is taken.

#### ARTICLE IV POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

**Section 4.01 Powers and Duties**. The Board of Directors has the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association and may do all such acts and things as are not by law or by these Bylaws directed to be exercised and done exclusively by the Members.

Section 4.02 Powers of the Board. The powers of the Board shall include, but not be limited to:

(a) The power and duty to select, appoint and remove all officers, agents and employees of the Association, to prescribe such powers and duties for them as may be consistent with law and the Governing Documents and to fix their compensation.

(b) The power and duty to conduct, manage and control the affairs and business of the Association, and to make such Rules and Regulations therefor consistent with law, as the Board may deem necessary or advisable.

(c) The power but not the duty to change the principal office for the transaction of the business of the Association from one location to another within the County in which the Property is located, as provided in Article I hereof; and to designate any place within said County for the holding of any annual or special meeting or meetings of Members consistent with the provisions of these Bylaws, and to adopt and use a corporate seal from time to time, as the Board, in its sole judgment, may deem best, provided that such seal shall at all times comply with the provisions of the law.

(d) The power but not the duty to borrow money as may be needed in connection with the discharge by the Association of its duties.

(e) The power but not the duty to cause to be executed and delivered, in the Association's name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations or other evidences of debt and securities therefor.

(f) The power and duty to fix and levy from time to time Regular Assessments, Special Assessments and any other Assessments and to enforce collection thereof, in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration.

(g) The power and duty to enforce the provisions of the Declaration, these Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, and any agreements of the Association.

(h) The power and duty to contract for and pay for insurance, in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration and/or statute.

(i) The power and duty to contract for and pay for Common Area maintenance, and common utilities services, and for materials and supplies and other expenses relating to the Common Area, and relating to the Units only to the extent not separately metered or charged, and to employ personnel necessary for the operation of the Property, including legal and accounting services, and to contract for and pay for Improvements on the Common Area.

(j) The power and duty to contract for and pay maintenance and repair of any Condominium of a type normally the sole responsibility of the Owner of the Condominium if such maintenance or repair is reasonably necessary in the discretion of the Board to protect the interests of Owners generally and if the Owner of the Condominium has failed or refused to perform such maintenance or repair; provided however, that the Board may levy a Reimbursement Assessment for repayment of the cost of such maintenance or repair.

(k) The power but not the duty to delegate its powers according to law, and, subject to the approval of the Members, to adopt these Bylaws.

(I) The power but not the duty to grant or quitclaim easements, licenses or rights, of way in, on, or over the Common Area for purposes not inconsistent with the intended use of the Property as a condominium project, in accordance with the Declaration.

(m) The power but not the duty to employ a managing agent or other persons and contract with independent contractors or managing agents to perform all or any part of the duties and responsibility of the Association, except for the responsibility to hold hearings or caused to be filed legal actions, provided that any contract with a firm or person appointed as a manager or managing agent shall not exceed a one (1) year term, shall provide for the right of the Association to terminate the same for cause on thirty (30) days written notice or less, or without cause or payment of a termination fee on ninety (90) days written notice or less.

(n) The power but not the duty to contract for goods and/or services for the Common Area(s), for the Condominiums, or for the Association, subject to limitations set forth in the Declaration or elsewhere herein.

(o) The power but not the duty to designate such advisory and other committees as the Board shall desire, and to establish the purposes and powers of each such committee created. The Board resolution designating and establishing the committee shall provide for the appointment of its members, as well as a chairperson, shall state the purposes of the committee, and shall provide for reports, the term of each committee member, and other administrative matters, all as deemed appropriate by the Board.

(p) The power but not the duty to authorize the Association to pay expenses incurred by, or to satisfy a judgment or fine levied against the Association, any present or former Director, officer, employee or agent of the Association to the extent and under the circumstances provided in the Declaration.

(q) The power but not the duty to suspend membership rights and/or the right to use the Common Area recreational facilities of any Member for so long as the Member is delinquent in the payment of any fine or assessment, or, for a violation of the Governing Documents for so long as the Member remains in violation. No such rights shall be suspended without notice to the Member and a hearing before the Board of Directors.

**Section 4.03 Limitations on Board Power.** Without the approval of a majority of the voting power of the Association, the Board shall not be permitted to do the following:

(a) Sell during any fiscal year, property of the Association or Common Area having an aggregate fair market value greater than five percent (5%) of the budgeted gross expenses of the Association for that fiscal year;

(b) Other than those which have been reserved, incur aggregate expenditures for capital improvements to the Common Area in any fiscal year in excess of five percent (5%) of the budgeted gross expenses of the Association for that fiscal year; or

(c) Enter into a contract with a third person wherein the third person will furnish goods or services for the Common Area or the Association for a term longer than one (1) year with the following exceptions:

- (1) A contract with a public utility company if the rates charged for the materials or services are regulated by the Public Utilities Commission provided, however, that the term of the contract shall not exceed the shortest term for which the supplier will contract at the regulated rate;
- Prepaid casualty and/or liability insurance policies of not to exceed three
  (3) years duration, provided that the policy permits for short rate cancellation by the insured;
- (3) Agreements for bulk cable television services, and equipment, internet or satellite television services and equipment of not to exceed five (5) years duration, provided that the supplier is not an entity in which any Member has a direct or indirect ownership interest of ten percent (10%) or more;
- (4) Agreements for sale or lease of security, burglar alarm, fire alarm equipment, installation and services of not to exceed five (5) years duration, provided that the supplier or suppliers are not entities in which any Member has a direct or indirect ownership interest of ten percent (10%) or more; or
- (5) Such other contracts which may from time to time be permitted by the regulations of the Real Estate Commissioner of the State of California.

(d) Receive compensation for services rendered as an Officer or Director. Directors and Officers shall not receive assessment credit in return for such service, which also is prohibited. However, Directors and Officers may be reimbursed for expenses actually and reasonably incurred in the course of their service to the Association.

(e) Contract with a Member or relative of a Member.

Section 4.04 Duties of the Board. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to:

(a) Perform the maintenance described in the Declaration;

(b) Maintain insurance as required by the Declaration;

(c) Discharge by payment, if necessary, any lien against the Common Area and assess the cost of such lien to the Member or Members responsible for the existence of the lien (after notice and hearing as required by these Bylaws, the Declaration and/or state statute);

(d) Fix, levy, collect and enforce payments of assessments as set forth in the Declaration;

(e) Pay all expenses and obligations incurred by the Association in the conduct of its business including, without limitation, all licenses, taxes, or governmental charges levied or imposed against the property of the Association;

(f) Cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and business affairs and to keep adequate and correct books and records of account, minutes of proceedings of its members, Board and committees, and a record of its members giving their names and addresses; and,

(g) Supervise all officers, agents and employees of the Association, and to see that their duties are properly performed.

## Section 4.05 Discipline and Reimbursement Assessments Process.

Prior to imposing any discipline against a Member or imposing a Reimbursement Assessment, the Board shall follow the following process:

(a) The Owner shall be given notice and an opportunity to be heard with respect to the alleged violation in accordance with the provisions of <u>Section 7341</u> of the California Corporations Code, Civil Code <u>Section 5855</u> and the following (collectively, the "Notice and Hearing"):

- (1) Prior to imposing or considering any discipline against a member, the Board shall notify the member in writing, by personal delivery or first-class mail, at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting.
- (2) The written notification shall contain at least the date, time and place of the meeting, the nature of the alleged violation or cause of the reimbursement assessment claim, and a statement that the member may address the Board at the hearing.
- (3) The Board shall meet in executive session. The Board may set a reasonable time limit upon the Member's response, and may pass Rules regarding the conduct of Disciplinary or Reimbursement Assessment Hearings.
- (4) If the Board imposes discipline on a member or imposes a reimbursement assessment, the Board shall provide the member a written notification of the action, by either personal delivery or first-class mail, within fifteen (15) days of the action.

(b) Any suspension of an Owner's association privileges shall not exceed sixty (60) days for each violation, or until the violation is corrected, whichever is later.

(c) Any monetary Penalty Assessment shall not exceed the limits, if any, set forth in the Rules and Regulations or Fine Policy, in effect at the time of the violation.

## ARTICLE V OFFICERS

**Section 5.01 Designation of Association Officers**. The principal Officers of the Association shall be a President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may appoint an Assistant Treasurer, and an

Assistant Secretary, and such other Officers as in their judgment may be necessary (each, an "Officer"). Officers must be Members of the Association but officers other than the President and Vice President need not be Directors. Any Person may hold more than one office. Officers may not vote or participate in executive session meetings unless the Officer is also a Director.

**Section 5.02 Election of Officers**. The Officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at an organizational meeting after each Annual Membership Meeting, and each Officer shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, until such Officer shall resign or be removed or otherwise disqualified to serve or a successor shall be elected and qualified to serve.

**Section 5.03 Removal of Officers**. Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the entire Board of Directors, any Officer may be removed, either with or without cause. Any Officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board or to the President or Secretary of the Association. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein; and unless otherwise specified in said notice, acceptance of such resignation by the Board shall not be necessary to make it effective.

**Section 5.04 Filling of Vacancies**. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled by the Board at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors, or at any special meeting of the Board called for such purpose. The period of time for any office filled in this manner shall be for the unexpired term of the Officer replaced.

**Section 5.05 Compensation**. No Officer shall receive any compensation for services performed in the conduct of the Association's business, provided that (1) nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any officer from serving the Association in some other capacity and receiving compensation therefor, and (2) any Officer may be reimbursed for the Officer's actual expenses incurred in the performance of such Officer's duties.

**Section 5.06 President**. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board of Directors. The President shall have all of the general powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of the President of a non-profit mutual benefit corporation, including but not limited to the power to appoint committees from among the Members from time to time as the President may in the President's discretion decide is appropriate to assist in conducting the affairs of the Association. The President shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have general supervision, direction and control of the business of the Association. The President shall be an ex officio member of all standing committees, shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws of the Association.

**Section 5.07 Secretary**. The Secretary shall keep the Minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Minutes of all meetings of the Association at the principal office of the Association or at such other place as the Board of Directors may order. The Secretary shall keep the seal of the Association in safe custody and shall have charge of such books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct; and the Secretary shall, in general, perform all of the duties incident to the office of Secretary. The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notices of meetings of the Members of the Association and of the Board of Directors required by these Bylaws or by law to be given. The Secretary shall maintain a record book of Members, listing the names, mailing addresses and telephone numbers of Members, as furnished to the Association. Termination or transfer of ownership by any Member shall be recorded in the Membership Register by the Secretary, together with the date of the transfer, in accordance with the provisions

of the Declaration. Such Membership Register shall be changed only at such time as satisfactory evidence of a change in ownership of a Condominium is presented to the Secretary. The Secretary shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws.

**Section 5.08 Treasurer**. The Treasurer shall be the chief financial officer of the Association and shall have responsibility for Association funds and securities for keeping, or causing to be kept, full and accurate accounts, tax records and business transactions of the Association, including accounts of all assets, liabilities, receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Association. The Treasurer shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name, and to the credit, of the Association in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the Association as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, in accordance with the Declaration, shall render to the President and Directors, upon request, an account of all of such Treasurer's transactions as Treasurer and of the financial conditions of the Association, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws.

## ARTICLE VI SUBORDINATE OFFICERS & COMMITTEES

**Section 6.01 Appointment**. The Board may appoint such subordinate officers and committees as it deems desirable from time to time.

**Section 6.02 Duties**. Such subordinate officers and committee members shall have the duties that the Board may from time to time prescribe, including the right to act in the place and stead of other Officers, other than the President, as the Board may designate.

**Section 6.03 Executive Committee**. The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint an Executive Committee and to delegate to such Committee any of the powers and authority of the Board in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation except the power to adopt, amend or repeal Bylaws. The Executive Committee shall be composed of three (3) or more directors, one of whom shall also be the president.

### ARTICLE VII AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be amended by the Association by the vote taken by secret written ballot of Members representing at least a majority a quorum of the Members; provided that the specified percentage of Members necessary to amend a specific section or provision of these Bylaws shall not be less than the percentage of affirmative votes prescribed for action to be taken under that section or provision.

#### ARTICLE VIII CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; SUCCESSOR STATUTES

In case any of these Bylaws conflict with any provisions of the laws of the State of California, such conflicting Bylaws shall be null and void but all other Bylaws shall remain in full force and effect. In case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall control. Any references herein to a Federal or State statute shall be deemed to refer to any later enactment, renumbering or recodification of the provisions of said statute.

#### ARTICLE IX FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS

**Section 9.01 Reserve Study**. In accordance with the Civil Code, as the same may be amended from time to time, at least once every three (3) years the Board shall cause to be conducted a reasonably competent and diligent visual inspection of the accessible areas of the major components that the Association is obligated to repair, replace, restore or maintain as part of a study of the reserve account requirements of the Property to be conducted, if the current replacement value of said major components is equal to or greater than one-half (1/2) of the gross budget of the Association, excluding the Association's reserve account for that period. The Board shall review this study annually and shall consider and implement necessary adjustments to the Board's analysis of the reserve account requirements as a result of that review. The study required by this Section shall, at a minimum, contain the information required by Civil Code, as the same may be amended from time to time.

**Section 9.02 Expenditure of Reserve Funds**. The Board shall not expend funds designated as reserve funds for any purpose other than the repair, restoration, replacement, or maintenance of, or litigation involving the repair, restoration, replacement, or maintenance of, major components which the Association is obligated to repair, restore, replace, or maintain and for which the reserve fund was established.

(a) However, the Board may authorize the temporary transfer of money from a reserve fund to the Association's general operating fund to meet short-term cash-flow requirements or other expenses, if the Board has provided notice of the intent to consider the transfer in a notice of meeting, which shall be provided as specified in the Civil Code, as the same may be amended from time to time. The notice shall include the reasons the transfer is needed, some options for repayment, and whether a special assessment may be considered.

(b) If the Board authorizes the transfer, the Board shall issue a written finding recorded in the Board's minutes, explaining the reason the transfer is needed and describing when and how the money will be repaid to the reserve fund. The transferred funds shall be restored to the reserve fund within one (1) year of the date of the initial transfer, except that the Board may, after giving the same notice required for considering a transfer, and, upon making a finding supported by documentation that a temporary delay would be in the best interests of the Association, temporarily delay the restoration. (c) The Board shall exercise prudent fiscal management in maintaining the integrity of the reserve account, and shall, if necessary, levy a special assessment to recover the full amount of the expended funds within the time limits required by this Section. This special assessment is subject to the limitation imposed by the Association's governing documents and the Civil Code, or any successor statute. The Board may, at its discretion, extend the date the payment on the special assessment is due. Any extension shall not prevent the board from pursuing any legal remedy to enforce the collection of an unpaid special assessment.

**Section 9.03 Withdrawal of Reserve Funds**. The Association shall not withdraw any funds from the Association's reserve account(s), unless at least two (2) members of the Board of Directors execute the document or check authorizing such withdrawal. A Manager shall not be authorized to execute any document(s) or check(s) authorizing a withdrawal of funds from the Association's reserve account(s).

## Section 9.04 Association Budgets and Operating Statements.

(a) The following financial information shall be regularly prepared and distributed by the Board to all Members regardless of the number of Members or the amount of assets of the Association:

- (1) A pro forma operating budget for each fiscal year consisting of at least the following information shall be distributed thirty (30) to ninety (90) days before the end of the fiscal year.
  - (i) Estimated revenue and expenses on an accrual basis.
  - (ii) The amount of the total cash reserves of the Association currently available for replacement or major repair of Common Facilities and for contingencies.
  - (iii) An itemized estimate of the remaining life of, and the methods of funding to defray repair, replacement or additions to major components of the Common Areas and facilities for which the Association is responsible.
  - (iv) A general statement setting forth the procedures used by the governing body in the calculation and establishment of reserves to defray the costs of repair, replacement or additions to major components of the Common Areas and facilities for which the Association is responsible.
- (2) A report consisting of the following shall be distributed within one hundred twenty (120) days after the close of each fiscal year.
- (3) A balance sheet as of the end of the fiscal year.
- (4) An operating (income) statement for the fiscal year.
- (5) A statement of changes in financial position for the fiscal year.
- (6) For any fiscal year in which the gross income to the Association exceeds \$75,000.00, a copy of the review of the annual report prepared in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles by a licensee of the California State Board of Accountancy, pursuant to Civil Code 5300 or any successor statute.

(b) If the report referred to in (a) (2) above is not prepared by an independent accountant, it shall be accompanied by the certificate of an authorized officer of the Association that the statement was prepared from the books and records of the Association without independent audit or review.

(c) In addition to financial statements, the governing body shall annually distribute within sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year a statement of the Association's policies and practices in enforcing its remedies against Owners for defaults in the payment of regular and special assessments including the recording and foreclosing of liens against Owners' subdivision interests.

- (d) The Board shall do the following not less frequently than quarterly:
  - (1) Cause a current reconciliation of the Association's operating accounts to be made and review the same.
  - (2) Cause a current reconciliation of the Association's reserve accounts to be made and review the same.
  - (3) Review the current year's actual reserve revenues and expenses compared to the current year's budget.
  - (4) Review the most current account statements prepared by the financial institution where the Association has its operating and reserve accounts.
  - (5) Review an income and expense statement for the Association's operating and reserve accounts.

(e) Withdrawal of funds from the Association's reserve account shall require the signatures of at least two members of the Board

### ARTICLE X MISCELLANEOUS

**Section 10.01** Checks, Drafts and Documents. All checks, drafts, orders for payment of money, notes and other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of or payable to the Association shall be signed or endorsed in the manner and by the person or persons as the Board shall determine by resolution.

**Section 10.02 Execution of Documents**. The Board of Directors may authorize any Officer or Officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name and on behalf of the Association, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances; and unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no Officer, agent, committee member or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Association by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or in any amount. **Section 10.03 Operating Account**. There shall be established and maintained a cash deposit account to be known as the "operating account" into which shall be deposited the operating portion of all Regular Assessments and Special Assessments as fixed and determined for all Members. Disbursements from such account shall be for the general need of the operation including, but not limited to, wages, repairs, payment of vendors, betterments, maintenance, and other operating expenses of the Property.

**Section 10.04** Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first (1st) day of January and end on the thirty-first (31st) day of December of every year, but is subject to change from time to time as the Board of Directors shall determine.

**Section 10.05 Methods of Delivery of Documents**. Any document, communication or notice of any kind permitted or required by the Governing Documents, or required to be delivered by the Davis-Stirling Common Interest Development Act shall be delivered by any one of the following methods:

(a) Personal delivery.

(b) First-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to a Member at the address last shown on the books of the Association or otherwise provided by the Member. Delivery is deemed to be complete on deposit into the United States mail.

(c) E-mail, facsimile, or other electronic means, if the recipient has agreed to that method of delivery. If a document is delivered by electronic means, delivery is complete at the time of transmission.

(d) By publication in a periodical that is circulated primarily to Members of the Association.

(e) If the Association broadcasts television programming for the purpose of distributing information on Association business to its Members, by inclusion in the programming.

(f) Any other method of delivery provided that the recipient has agreed to that method of delivery.

(g) A document may be included in or delivered with a billing statement, newsletter, or other document that is delivered by one of the above methods.

### **CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY**

#### OF

#### **GOLDEN WEST-NAOMI HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION**

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of GOLDEN WEST-NAOMI HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation ("Association"); and

2. These Bylaws constitute the FIRST AMENDED and Restated Bylaws of the Association, duly adopted by a majority of the Members by written ballot on

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my hand this \_\_\_\_\_ day of , 2021.

Signature

Print (Secretary)